

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

STATE OF LOUISIANA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
SOLID WASTE BOARD MEETING

The above-entitled meeting was held via
ZOOM on July 11, 2023.

A P P E A R A N C E S

- RICARDO DEABREU-CHAIRMAN
- JOHN "BUBBA" WYNN
- DONOVAN DRISKILL
- WES WYCHE
- DAVID GREENE
- RICHARD LEBOUF
- ROBERT THOMAS
- KERI MYERS
- SHIRLEY ROBINS
- TORI G. PERRET-CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

PROCEEDING:

MR. DEABREU:

Calling the meeting to order. We're starting the meeting July 11, 2023, at 11:00am. Ms. Shirley, start the roll call, please.

MS. ROBINS:

Okay. My name is Shirley Robins, and I will be doing the roll call. Mr. Ricardo deAbreu?

MR. DEABREU:

Here.

MS. ROBINS:

Mr. John "Bubba" Wynn?

MR. WYNN:

Here.

MS. ROBINS:

Donovan Driskill?

MR. DRISKILL:

Here.

MS. ROBINS:

Wes Wyche?

MR. WYCHE:

I'm here.

MS. ROBINS:

1 Mr. Robert Thomas?

2 MR. THOMAS:

3 Present.

4 MS. ROBINS:

5 Richard LeBouef?

6 MR. LEBOUUEF:

7 Here.

8 MS. ROBINS:

9 And, David Greene?

10 MR. GREENE:

11 Here.

12 MS. ROBINS:

13 And, Keri Meyers?

14 MS. MEYERS:

15 Here.

16 MR. DEABREU:

17 First, I would like to welcome Richard
18 LeBouef to the board. I think he is going to
19 be a great member at work for the Louisiana
20 Board. He's very knowledgeable about Solid
21 Waste Management and also in the oil field.
22 I will welcome his spirits. He's a great
23 manager for the land field. I would like to
24 welcome him on behalf of the board.

25 MR. LEBOUUEF:

1 It's an honor for me. Thank you so much.
2 Appreciate it.

3 MR. DEABREU:

4 All right. I would like to progress to
5 amend our agenda to include the issuance of
6 certifications for all categories for Mr.
7 Columbia and Mr. Richard LeBoeuf, since they
8 are members of the board. We haven't done
9 that yet. So, I would like to ask for a
10 motion to amend our agenda.

11 MR. WYNN:

12 I'll make a motion to amend the agenda.

13 MR. DEABREU:

14 A motion by Mr. Wynn. Do I hear a
15 second?

16 MR. GREENE:

17 This is David Greene. I'll second.

18 MR. DEABREU:

19 Second by Mr. Greene. Any comments or
20 discussion? Hearing none. The motion passes.

21 So, I'd like to -- now we're going to
22 vote for -- to conclude the certifications
23 or to issue the certifications for all
24 categories on Solid Waste for Mr. LeBoeuf.
25 Do I hear a motion?

1 MR. GREENE:

2 This is David. I'll make a motion.

3 MR. DEABREU:

4 A motion by Mr. Greene to approve all
5 certificates.

6 MR. DRISKILL:

7 Donovan. I'll second.

8 MR. DEABREU:

9 Second by Mr. Driskill. Any comments?
10 Hearing none, the motion carries. Next is
11 the review of the March 17, 2023, minutes
12 from our last meeting. Everybody received
13 the minutes?

14 MR. WYNN:

15 I'll make a motion to accept the
16 minutes.

17 MR. DEABREU:

18 I hear a motion from Mr. Wynn. Do I hear
19 a second?

20 MR. THOMAS:

21 I second.

22 MR. DEABREU:

23 Second by Mr. Thomas. Any comments?
24 Hearing none, the motion carries. Now, we're
25 going to move to the consideration of

1 operator certifications. First is the review
2 of the applications for certifications. We
3 have a long list here. The first one is Mr.
4 Bruce Johnson, senior (inaudible) Level B.
5 Any comments on his application?

6 MR. GREENE:

7 I make a motion, that's fine.

8 MR. DEABREU:

9 A motion to approve by Mr. Greene.

10 MR. WYNN:

11 I second.

12 MR. DEABREU:

13 Second by Mr. Wynn. Any other comments
14 or complaints? Hearing none, that motion
15 carries.

16 Second is Mr. Raymond Sturdivant, Jr. He
17 works Ego Environmental Service.

18 MR. GREENE:

19 I have a question. I know Troy signed
20 off on, and I respect that. I just don't
21 understand exactly what he's doing. He's a
22 consultant.

23 MR. DEABREU:

24 He was a consultant.

25 MR. GREENE:

1 He's working about 10 hours a week, but
2 I mean, is he working at the landfill? I
3 don't understand that part.

4 MR. DEABREU:

5 He doesn't work at the landfill. He's
6 not required to work at the landfill, except
7 for when he approve (inaudible). The other
8 consultants do it. What are the requirements
9 from the regulation status that you have to
10 experience of, at least, three years on
11 waste management (inaudible)? So, it's up to
12 the board to decide if it's valid.

13 MR. WYNN:

14 As far as the work experience, he has
15 enough work experience from 2015 on. He's
16 got plenty of work experience.

17 MR. DEABREU:

18 Well, I know Mr. Sturdivant (inaudible)
19 since 2003. He has been working with
20 landfills. But, yes, he has, at least,
21 (inaudible).

22 MR. WYNN:

23 I'll make a motion we accept.

24 MR. DEABREU:

25 Motion by Mr. Wynn. Do I hear a second?

1 MR. DRISKILL:

2 I'll second.

3 MR. DEABREU:

4 A second by Mr. Driskill. Any other
5 comments? Hearing none, the motion carries.

6 Next, is Randy Chastant, (inaudible)
7 Level B.

8 MR. WYCHE:

9 This is Wes. I move to approve.

10 MR. DEABREU:

11 A motion by Mr. Wyche. Do we hear a
12 second?

13 MR. GREENE:

14 I second.

15 MR. DEABREU:

16 Second by Mr. Greene. Any other
17 comments. Hearing none, the motion carries.

18 Next, is Robert Raymond, Level B
19 (inaudible) Parish. Do I hear a motion?

20 MR. GREENE:

21 I'll make a motion to approve?

22 MR. DEABREU:

23 A motion to approve by Mr. Greene. Do I
24 hear a second?

25 MR. WYCHE:

1 This is Wes. I'll second that.

2 MR. DEABREU:

3 Second by Mr. Wyche. Any comments?

4 Hearing none, the motion carries.

5 Next, Garrett Pier, Level B. He works
6 with Waste Management Oil Landfill.

7 MR. WYCHE:

8 This is Wes. I'll move to approve that
9 one as well.

10 MR. DEABREU:

11 Motion to approve by Mr. Wyche. Do we
12 hear a second?

13 MR. WYNN:

14 I'll second.

15 MR. DEABREU:

16 Second by Mr. Wynn. Any comments?

17 Hearing none, the motion carries.

18 Next, Mary DuPree, Level B, (inaudible).

19 MR. WYCHE:

20 This is Wes, and I'll move to approve
21 that one also.

22 MR. DEABREU:

23 A motion by Mr. Wyche to approve.

24 (Inaudible discussion)

25 MR. DEABREU:

1 Any other comments? Do I hear a second?

2 MR. DRISKILL:

3 I'll second.

4 MR. DEABREU:

5 Second by Mr. Driskill. Any other
6 comments? Hearing none, the motion carries.

7 Next, is Kevin Guidry, entry Level D in
8 (inaudible) Parish.

9 MR. WYNN:

10 I'll make a motion.

11 MR. DEABREU:

12 A motion by Mr. Wynn to accept. Do I
13 hear a second?

14 MR. LEBOEUF:

15 I'll second that one.

16 MR. DEABREU:

17 Second by Mr. LeBoeuf. Do I hear any
18 comments? Hearing none, the motion carries.

19 Next, is Dawson Krull, Landfill Level B,
20 (inaudible) Parish.

21 MR. WYCHE:

22 This is Wes, and I don't know that I
23 have that one.

24 (Inaudible discussion)

25 MR. GREENE:

1 I'll make a motion.

2 MR. DEABREU:

3 A motion by Mr. Greene, and a second by
4 Mr. Wynn. Any comments? Hearing none, the
5 motion carries.

6 Next, is Kaleb Benoit, entry Level B,
7 (inaudible) Parish.

8 MR. WYCHE:

9 This is Wes. The notes I wrote down on
10 that were that he wouldn't have his
11 experience until October 18th of this year. I
12 think, maybe, he had some good experience,
13 but he wouldn't have enough -- he wouldn't
14 have the two years until then. So, I could
15 move to approve it contingent upon him
16 reaching the two-year requirement in
17 October.

18 MR. WYNN:

19 There's no question that at this point
20 in time he would not be certified then until
21 October. We are going to get to one here
22 after while, and I've already talked to you
23 about that. He is not going to have his
24 certification -- I mean, his experience, but
25 we can give them a conditional until that

1 time indicates they are meeting an operator
2 onsite. And so, this is what I would suggest
3 is give him a conditional now, and then go
4 ahead and approve it when his time is up,
5 his experience is up, go ahead and give his
6 certification, and we don't have to come
7 back to do this again.

8 MR. DEABREU:

9 Okay. I have a motion from Mr. Wynn
10 (inaudible) condition certification level
11 for Landfill Level B, until he has the two-
12 year experience, which will be around
13 October. And then, he should have a regular
14 certification from Landfill Level B. Is that
15 correct?

16 MR. WYNN:

17 That is correct.

18 MR. DEABREU:

19 So, a motion by Mr. Wynn. Do I hear a
20 second?

21 MR. LEBOUF:

22 I'll second that.

23 MR. DEABREU:

24 Second by Mr. LeBouef. Any comments?
25 Hearing none, the motion carries.

1 Next, is Joshua Kritzer, Landfill Level
2 B, (inaudible) Parish.

3 MR. WYCHE:

4 This is Wes. I think this is one we got
5 an updated application later on, and it
6 looked like the initial concern I had was he
7 didn't have enough experience. He only had a
8 year, but now he's got close to two years,
9 but it won't be until August 1st. So, we
10 could make the same motion, possibly, for
11 him.

12 MR. GREENE:

13 Yes, we could.

14 MR. WYCHE:

15 I'll go ahead and make that motion,
16 which would, basically, be to grant him a
17 conditional until -- a Level B conditional
18 until August 1st, and then as of August 1st,
19 he would have the regular certificate.

20 MR. DEABREU:

21 A motion by Mr. Wyche.

22 MR. DRISKILL:

23 I'll second.

24 MR. DEABREU:

25 A second by Mr. Driskill. Any comments?

1 Hearing none, the motion carries.

2 Next, is Krista Mouille, Entry Level B,
3 (inaudible) Parish.

4 MR. WYNN:

5 I'll make a motion.

6 MR. DEABREU:

7 A motion by Mr. Wynn. Do I hear a
8 second?

9 MR. LEBOUUEF:

10 I'll second that.

11 MR. DEABREU:

12 Second by Mr. LeBouef. Any comments?

13 Hearing none, the motion carries.

14 Next, is Leroy Mouille, Management Level
15 B, (inaudible) Parish.

16 MR. GREENE:

17 I'll make a motion.

18 MR. DEABREU:

19 A motion by Mr. Greene.

20 MR. WYCHE:

21 This is Wes. I'll second.

22 MR. DEABREU:

23 A second by Mr. Wyche. Any comments?

24 Hearing none, the motion carries.

25 Next, is Elwyn Deville, (inaudible)

1 Level A from the City of Lake Charles.

2 MR. WYCHE:

3 This is Wes. I'll move to approve.

4 MR. DEABREU:

5 A motion by Mr. Wyche. Do I hear a
6 second?

7 MR. WYNN:

8 I'll second.

9 MR. DEABREU:

10 Second by Mr. Wynn. Any comments?

11 Hearing none, the motion carries.

12 Next, is Clayton Spell, Waste Management
13 Level A, Lake Charles.

14 MR. WYNN:

15 I'll make a motion.

16 MR. DEABREU:

17 A motion to approve by Mr. Wynn. Do I
18 hear a second?

19 MR. WYCHE:

20 Second.

21 MR. DEABREU:

22 Second by Mr. Wynn. Any comments?

23 Hearing none, the motion carries.

24 Next, Cornelius Guillory, Jr., Waste
25 Handling Level A with City of Lake Charles.

1 MR. GREENE:

2 I got just a question. We've already
3 voted on Clayton, but Mr. Guillory, that's
4 two Class A's that's acceptable for the
5 place?

6 MR. DEABREU:

7 Yes.

8 MR. GREENE:

9 Okay, that's fine. I'll make a motion.

10 MR. DEABREU:

11 A motion by Mr. Greene. Second by Mr.
12 Wynn. Any comments? Hearing none, the motion
13 carries.

14 Next, is Jeffrey Streeter, C&D Level A
15 with (inaudible).

16 MR. WYNN:

17 I'll make a motion.

18 MR. DEABREU:

19 A motion by Mr. Wynn. Do I hear a
20 second?

21 MR. WYCHE:

22 I'll second.

23 MR. DEABREU:

24 Second by Mr. Wyche. Any comments?
25 Hearing none, the motion carries.

1 Next, is Credric Stout, C&D Level B with
2 (inaudible) Landfill.

3 MR. WYNN:

4 I'll make a motion.

5 MR. DEABREU:

6 A motion by Mr. Wynn. Do I hear a
7 second?

8 MR. WYCHE:

9 This is Wes. I'll second.

10 MR. DEABREU:

11 Second by Mr. Wyche. Any comments?
12 Hearing none, the motion carries.

13 Next, Jordan Taylor, C&D Level B,
14 (inaudible) Landfill.

15 MR. WYNN:

16 I'll make a motion.

17 MR. DEABREU:

18 A motion to approve by Mr. Wynn. Do I
19 hear a second?

20 MR. WYCHE:

21 Second.

22 MR. DEABREU:

23 Second by Mr. Wyche. Any comments?
24 Hearing none, the motion carries.

25 Next, Gillian Watson, Landfill Level A

1 with Waste Management.

2 MR. GREENE:

3 I've got a question on him. On his work
4 history -- I'm sorry, I don't have his
5 packet in front of him, but I have his got
6 certificates where he's been in the
7 industry, but I don't see the current. It
8 says he's only been employed at Magnolia
9 Landfill since July 2nd of this year, but I
10 don't see anything where he has experience
11 beyond that.

12 MR. WYCHE:

13 This is Wes. That's the same note that I
14 wrote down.

15 MR. GREENE:

16 He has the certificate, but he did not
17 write down any experience. A completion of
18 the application can help a lot.

19 MR. WYCHE:

20 This is Wes. I don't see how the board
21 can accept him based on what's in the
22 application. It's not enough experience.

23 MR. DEABREU:

24 A motion to deny.

25 MR. WYCHE:

1 I can make that motion. I'll make that
2 motion.

3 MR. DEABREU:

4 A motion to deny by Mr. Wyche.

5 MR. GREENE:

6 I'll second.

7 MR. DEABREU:

8 Second by Mr. Greene. Any comments?

9 Hearing none, it is denied. The application
10 is denied.

11 MS. ROBINS:

12 Denied because?

13 BOARD MEMBER 1:

14 His work experience is not listed on the
15 application. He will question you, probably,
16 because he has the certificates, but he did
17 not fill out his application giving us the
18 information we wanted.

19 BOARD MEMBER 2:

20 It shows he's only been employed since
21 July 2nd.

22 MR. DEABREU:

23 Next, Kizzy Nicholas, Entry Level A,
24 Waste Management.

25 MR. WYCHE:

1 This is Wes, and I'll move to approve.

2 MR. DEABREU:

3 A motion by Mr. Wyche to approve.

4 MR. DEABREU:

5 Do I hear a second?

6 MR. GREENE:

7 Second. This is David.

8 MR. DEABREU:

9 Second by Mr. Greene. Any comments?

10 Hearing none, the motion carries.

11 Next, is James Prather, Entry Level A,
12 Waste Management.

13 MR. GREENE:

14 I'll make a motion.

15 MR. DEABREU:

16 A motion to approve by Mr. Greene. Do we
17 hear a second?

18 MR. WYNN:

19 Second.

20 MR. DEABREU:

21 Second by Mr. Wynn. Any comments?

22 Hearing none, the motion carries.

23 Next, is Isaiah London, Landfill Level
24 A, Waste Management.

25 MR. WYCHE:

1 I have a feeling David will have the
2 same comments I've got. This is Wes, but
3 what I wrote down when I reviewed it was
4 that he had only been at the landfill for
5 three months. He had two years of experience
6 operating dosers at a C&D Landfill.

7 MR. GREENE:

8 That was my biggest thing. He just
9 didn't fill out which class landfill he's
10 working at, but I looked at the name of it,
11 so he is at a waste management. He is at
12 Solid Waste but prior to this, and he's just
13 been working at Waste Management at a Type
14 II Landfill since 2023. So, the two years he
15 worked at C&D Cycle (inaudible).

16 (Inaudible discussion)

17 MR. WYCHE:

18 Well, does it give him three? If he just
19 had two years at the C&D. He's only been at
20 the new landfill for three months.

21 (Inaudible discussion)

22 MR. WYCHE:

23 He is going to be short the experience
24 by five months -- three months.

25 (Inaudible discussion)

1 MR. DEABREU:

2 Well, we can make a motion to approve
3 conditional.

4 MR. GREENE:

5 He would meet the total three years. I
6 guess that is what we are trying to figure
7 out.

8 (Inaudible discussion)

9 MR. WYCHE:

10 This is Wes. Yeah. So, he needs some
11 additional six months. So, I would make a
12 motion that he be granted on a conditional
13 Level A that becomes regular in six months.

14 MR. DEABREU:

15 A motion by Mr. Wyche.

16 MR. LEBOUF:

17 I'll second that.

18 MR. DEABREU:

19 Second by Mr. LeBouef. Any comment?

20 Hearing none, the motion carries.

21 Next, is Jason Guidry, Entry Level B,
22 Waste Management.

23 MR. GREENE:

24 I got (inaudible) on him. On the
25 experience, it says landfill from 6-22 until

1 now. And then, prior to 6-22, he worked at a
2 waste water plant. So, I don't see the
3 correlation, unless y'all got rules I
4 haven't heard about with that. So, I would
5 make a move to deny the application.

6 MR. DEABREU:

7 A motion by Mr. Greene. Do I hear a
8 second to deny the application?

9 MR. WYCHE:

10 This is Wes. I will second that.

11 MR. DEABREU:

12 Second by Mr. Wyche. Any comments?

13 MS. ROBINS:

14 And, he was denied because?

15 MR. DEABREU:

16 Experience. Next, Justin Rollins,
17 (inaudible) Level B, Waste Management.

18 MR. WYNN:

19 This one was similar (inaudible). I
20 mean, his time is in August or September,
21 and they are the ones that got hit as of
22 operator onsite. So, I would ask to give him
23 conditional until his experience, and then
24 go ahead and give him his regular
25 certification.

1 MR. DEABREU:

2 Okay. A motion by Mr. Wynn. Do I hear a
3 second?

4 MR. LEBOUF:

5 I'll second that.

6 MR. DEABREU:

7 Second by Mr. LeBouef. Any comments or
8 questions?

9 MS. ROBINS:

10 You said conditional once he gets his
11 experience?

12 MR. DEABREU:

13 Yes. Hearing none, the motion carries.
14 Next, Markel Jacobs, Entry Level B, Waste
15 Management.

16 MR. GREENE:

17 I'll make a motion. This is David.

18 MR. DEABREU:

19 A motion to accept by Mr. Greene. Do I
20 hear a second?

21 MR. WYNN:

22 Second.

23 MR. DEABREU:

24 Second by Mr. Wynn. Any comments?
25 Hearing none, the motion carries.

1 Next, is Chadd Barr, Entry Level B,
2 Waste Management.

3 MR. WYCHE:

4 This is Wes. I make a motion to approve.

5 MR. DEABREU:

6 A motion by Mr. Wyche.

7 MR. GREENE:

8 This is David. I'll second.

9 MR. DEABREU:

10 A second by Mr. Greene. Any comments?

11 Hearing none, the motion carries.

12 Next is the request for conditional
13 certification. We have three operators.

14 First on the list is Kevin J. Henderson,
15 Timothy Frye and Lee Dum, Jr., Entry Level B
16 with (inaudible).

17 MR. WYNN:

18 He is replacing (inaudible).

19 MR. DEABREU:

20 Yes, he is.

21 MS. ROBINS:

22 Yes.

23 MR. WYNN:

24 I'll make a motion.

25 MR. DEABREU:

1 A motion by Mr. Wynn.

2 MR. WYCHE:

3 I second.

4 MR. DEABREU:

5 A second by Mr. Wyche. Any comments?

6 Hearing none, the motion carries.

7 MR. WYNN:

8 These are conditional?

9 MR. DEABREU:

10 Yes, these are conditional certificates.

11 Next is Tina, (inaudible) in Lake Charles.

12 MR. WYNN:

13 I'll make the same motion. He is
14 replacing any certified operator.

15 MR. DEABREU:

16 A motion by Mr. Wynn. Do I hear a
17 second?

18 MR. WYCHE:

19 This is Wes. I'll second.

20 MR. DEABREU:

21 A second by Mr. Wyche. Any comments or
22 questions? Hearing none, the motion carries.

23 Next is Lee, Jr. Senior Waste Handle
24 Level A in Lake Charles.

25 MR. WYNN:

1 I'll make a motion.

2 MR. DEABREU:

3 A motion by Mr. Wynn. Do I hear a
4 second?

5 MR. LEBOUF:

6 I'll second that.

7 MR. DEABREU:

8 Second by Mr. LeBouef. Any comments?

9 MS. ROBINS:

10 And, all three of them were approved
11 condition?

12 MR. DEABREU:

13 Yes. Any other comments? Hearing none,
14 the motion carries. So, that the item on the
15 agenda of the review for conditional
16 certifications.

17 (Inaudible discussion)

18 MR. DEABREU:

19 We will move to the next item on the
20 list. (Inaudible) certificates for the
21 number of hours required, and they were all
22 turned in in time. So, I'm going to read the
23 number of the names, and then we approve as
24 a group.

25 So, we approve certification

1 applications for Mr. Christopher Smith, Seth
2 Natali, Jevon Natali, Tora Fontenot, Justin
3 Seals, Cody Grissom, Kayeona Darling, Loyda
4 Patrick Arender, and Troy Barnilleaux. Do I
5 hear a motion to approve all those
6 recertification application?

7 MR. LEBOUUEF:

8 I'll make that motion.

9 MR. DEABREU:

10 Motion by Mr. LeBouef. Do I hear a
11 second?

12 MR. DRISKILL:

13 I'll second.

14 MR. DEABREU:

15 Second by Mr. Driskill. Any comments?
16 Hearing none, the motion carries.

17 Next item on the agenda is the issuance
18 of an operator certificates. (Inaudible).
19 Can you read the list of names?

20 MS. ROBINS:

21 You want me to name the conditionals
22 also with that list?

23 MR. DEABREU:

24 No. All the regular approves.

25 MS. ROBINS:

1 Okay. The list of approved is Bruce
2 Johnson, Raymond Sturdivant, Randal
3 Chastant, Robert Raymond, Garrett Pier, Mary
4 DuPree, Kevin Guidry, Dawson Krull and
5 Krista Mouille, Leroy Mouille, Elwyn
6 Deville, Clayton Spell, Cornelius Guillory,
7 Jeffrey Streeter, Credric Stout, Jordan
8 Taylor, Kizzy Nicholas, James Prather, and
9 Markel Jacobs and Chad Barr.

10 MR. DEABREU:

11 A motion to approve all of the
12 applications.

13 MR. WYNN:

14 I'll make a motion.

15 MR. DEABREU:

16 A motion by Mr. Wynn.

17 MR. DRISKILL:

18 I'll second it.

19 MR. DEABREU:

20 Second by Mr. Driskill. Do I hear any
21 comments? Hearing none, the motion carries.

22 Next item on the agenda is (inaudible)
23 reports. (Inaudible). Do I hear any
24 nominations?

25 (Inaudible discussion)

1 MR. DEABREU:

2 Do I hear a motion to approve Richard
3 LeBouef for the awards?

4 MR. GREENE:

5 I'll make a motion.

6 MR. DEABREU:

7 A motion by Mr. Greene. Do I hear a
8 second?

9 MR. DRISKILL:

10 I second it.

11 MR. DEABREU:

12 Second by Mr. Driskill. Any comments?
13 Hearing none, the motion carries. So,
14 testing by Bubba Wynn. Do we have any?

15 MR. WYNN:

16 I will turn my over to Shirley.

17 MS. ROBINS:

18 We had seven tests.

19 MR. DEABREU:

20 And all approved?

21 MS. ROBINS:

22 Five passed, two failed.

23 MR. DEABREU:

24 And, all Level A's?

25 MS. ROBINS:

1 It was (inaudible). So, one Level A,
2 Landfill Level A, she failed. We had two
3 tests. One passed, one failed. And, one
4 Landfill Level B failed. Everybody else
5 passed.

6 MR. DEABREU:

7 Thank you.

8 MS. ROBINS:

9 Landfill Level B and C and D -- Level B
10 all passed.

11 MR. DEABREU:

12 Continuing education -- (inaudible).

13 MR. WYCHE:

14 I have no report which I am aware of.

15 MR. DEABREU:

16 And then, nominating Mr. Greene.

17 (Inaudible discussion)

18 BOARD MEMBER 3:

19 We will have the workshop in October.

20 MR. DEABREU:

21 That's correct.

22 (Inaudible discussion)

23 MR. DEABREU:

24 Nominating committee by Mr. Greene.

25 BOARD MEMBER 4:

1 We nominate Richard for the awards
2 today. It's a long day.

3 MR. DEABREU:

4 Next item on the agenda other business.
5 Any other business that the board would like
6 to bring up? Hearing none.

7 Next item is the public comment.

8 SPEAKER 1:

9 No comment today.

10 (Inaudible discussion)

11 BOARD MEMBER 5:

12 I just want the board to know that every
13 time I picked up the phone, Gary has always
14 been there and has always directed me where
15 I needed to go. So, again, everything that
16 I've done positive, you can blame Gary for
17 it.

18 (Inaudible discussion)

19 MR. DEABREU:

20 Okay. Any other comments? Did I hear a
21 motion to adjourn?

22 MR. DRISKILL:

23 I move we adjourn.

24 MR. LEBOUF:

25 I second.

1 MR. DEABREU:

2 Motion by Driskill. Second by Mr.
3 LeBouef. The meeting is adjourned. Thank
4 you, everybody.

5

6

7 (WHEREUPON THE MEETING CONCLUDED)

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C E R T I F I C A T E

1
2 This certification is valid only for a
3 transcript accompanied by my original
4 signature and official seal on this page.

5 I, TORI G. PERRET, Certified Court
6 Reporter, in and for the State of Louisiana,
7 as the officer before whom this deposition
8 was taken, do hereby certify that **NO**
9 **WITNESSES**, after having been first duly
10 sworn by me upon authority of R.S. 37:2554,
11 did testify as hereinbefore set forth in the
12 foregoing 36 pages;

13 That the testimony was reported by me in
14 the voice-writing method, and was prepared
15 and transcribed by me or under my personal
16 direction and supervision, and is a true and
17 correct transcript to the best of my ability
18 and understanding;

19 That the transcript has been prepared in
20 compliance with transcript format guidelines
21 required by statute or by rules of the
22 board, and that I am informed about the
23 complete arrangement, financial or
24 otherwise, with the person or entity making
25 arrangements for deposition services;

1 That I have acted in compliance with the
2 prohibition on contractual relationships, as
3 defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure
4 Article 1434 and in rules and advisory
5 opinions of the board;

6 That I have no actual knowledge of any
7 prohibited employment or contractual
8 relationship, direct or indirect, between a
9 court reporting firm and any party litigant
10 in this matter nor is there any such
11 relationship between myself and a party
12 litigant in this matter; and

13 That I am not related to counsel or to
14 the parties herein, nor am I otherwise
15 interested in the outcome of this matter.

16
17 _____
18 TORI GONOR
19 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER
20 LICENSE NO. 2018014
21
22
23
24
25

R E P O R T E R ' S P A G E

1
2
3 I, TORI GONOR, Certified Court Reporter
4 in and for the State of Louisiana, before
5 whom this sworn testimony was taken, do
6 hereby state on the Record:

7 That due to the interaction in the
8 spontaneous discourse of this proceeding,
9 dashes (--) have been used to indicate
10 pauses, changes in thought, and/or
11 talkovers;

12 That same is the proper method for a
13 Court Reporter's transcription of
14 proceedings, and that the dashes (--) do not
15 indicate that words or phrases have been
16 left out of this transcript;

17 That any words and/or names which could
18 not be verified through reference material
19 have been denoted with the phrase "(spelled
20 phonetically)."

21
22
23 -----
Tori Gonor

24 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER

25 LICENSE NO. 2018014